
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Paul Bateman, Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 07895 213740

E-mail: democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 1 September 2020

Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 9 SEPTEMBER 2020 AT 5.00 PM

THIS IS A VIRTUAL MEETING

You can watch this meeting via this weblink: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ 

Members of the Committee:
Max Thompson (Chair)
Val Shaw (Vice-Chair)
Ron Batstone
Eric Batts

Jenny Hannaby
Diana Lugova
Robert Maddison

Mike Pighills
Janet Shelley

Substitutes Councillors
Jerry Avery
Paul Barrow, Dr
Nathan Boyd

Andy Cooke
Amos Duveen
Hayleigh Gascoigne

Simon Howell
Elaine Ware

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


2

1. Chair's announcements  

To receive any announcements from the chair, and general housekeeping matters.

2. Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

3. Minutes  (Pages 4 - 8)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the minutes of the committee meeting held on 
19 August 2020.  

4. Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

5. Urgent business  

To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent.  

6. Public participation  

To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.  

Planning applications

All the background papers, with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (e.g. within Enforcement Files) used in the following reports 
within this agenda are held (normally electronically) in the application file (working 
file) and referenced by its application number.  These are available to view at the 
Council Offices (135 Milton Park, Milton) during normal office hours.

Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting.



3

Summary index of applications

Site Address Proposal Application No Page.

7. 3 Wildmoor 
Gate, Abingdon  

Demolition of an existing extension 
and the erection of a two-storey side 
extension to form two 1-bedroom 
apartments with parking and amenity 
space (Addition of visitor parking 
space and cycle storage as shown on 
p104B and p100C).  

P20/V0707/FUL 9 - 19

8. 2 Old Bakery 
Cottages, 
Bakery Lane, 
Letcombe Regis  

Existing garage to be demolished, 
replaced with single storey side 
extension.

P20/V1284/HH 20 - 30

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic 



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 19 August 2020 Pl.1

Minutes
of a meeting of the
Planning Committee
held on Wednesday 19 August 2020 at 5.00 pm

This was a virtual meeting

Open to the public, including the press

Present: 

Members: Councillors Max Thompson (Chair), Val Shaw (Vice-Chair), Jerry Avery, 
Ron Batstone, Eric Batts, Diana Lugova, Robert Maddison and Janet Shelley

Officers: Paul Bateman, Candida McKelvey, Penny Silverwood and Stuart Walker

Also present: Councillor David Grant

Pl.136 Election of Chair 

Councillor Val Shaw, Vice Chair, in the chair.

The committee had a vacancy for chair of the committee created by the resignation of the 
Chair, Councillor Bob Johnston. A proposal was made in respect of Councillor Max 
Thompson.  A motion, moved and seconded, to elect Councillor Max Thompson Chair of 
the Vale of White Horse Planning Committee, was declared carried on being put to the 
vote.

RESOLVED; that Councillor Max Thompson is elected Chair of the committee for the 
remainder of the municipal year.

Pl.137 Chair's announcements 

Councillor Max Thompson in the Chair.

The Chair had no announcements but ran through housekeeping arrangements 
appropriate to a virtual meeting.

Pl.138 Apologies for absence 

There were no apologies for absence.

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 19 August 2020 Pl.2

Pl.139 Minutes 

The minutes of the previous meeting, held on Wednesday 29 July 2020, were agreed to be 
a correct record of the meeting.  It was agreed that the Chair sign them as such.

Pl.140 Declarations of interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

Pl.141 Urgent business 

There were no urgent business.

Pl.142 Public participation 

The committee noted the list of members of the public registered to speak at the meeting.  
The committee had received prior to the meeting statements which had been made, which 
would be placed on the council’s web site.

Pl.143 P18/V0259/O - Land South of Steeds Farm, Coxwell Road, 
Faringdon 

The committee considered application P18/V0259/O for outline planning permission for up 
to 125 dwellings and associated public open space. All matters except access reserved 
(as amended by plans and documents received 2 May 2018, 3 May 2018 and 31 October 
2018). Viability assessment submitted 10 April 2019, amended viability assessment 
submitted on land South of Steeds Farm, Coxwell Road, Faringdon.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting.

The planning officer reported that a late objection had been received by officers, which 
considered that the application represented a lack of infrastructure and facilities, the 
urbanisation of Great Coxwell, and would have a detrimental effect upon the community of 
Faringdon. These issues had been addressed in the report to the committee.

The planning officer advised the committee that in April 2019 parish boundaries in the 
vicinity of the site were changed and the application site now fell within the Faringdon 
Town administration boundary. The application site did however remain within the 
designated area of the made Great Coxwell Neighbourhood Plan, therefore it was this 
neighbourhood plan that formed part of the Development Plan to which the application 
would be assessed against, along with the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 (LPP1) and Part 2 
(LPP2).

The committee noted that main recommendation 1 referred to an overage clause. The 
planning officer reported that this condition would be amended in the event of outline 
planning permission being granted.  

Referring to the principle of development, the planning officer reported that the proposal 
was part of the South of Faringdon strategic housing site, allocated for housing by Core 
Policy 4 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 (LPP1). The principle of development was therefore 
acceptable, unless material considerations indicated otherwise. Core Policy 20 stated that 

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 19 August 2020 Pl.3

development at this strategic allocation would be supported where development met the 
requirements set out within the Site Development Template, and in accordance with the 
Development Plan taken as a whole. The Site Development Template stated that the 
overall allocation would deliver around 200 homes, subject to masterplanning.

In meeting housing needs, there was a presumption in favour of sustainable development 
under policy CP4 of LPP1. The government also expected allocated sites to make optimal 
use of their potential to achieve efficient use of land. 125 units had been assessed against 
all relevant planning considerations and no technical objections had been raised. 
Therefore, officers considered that an increase of up to 125 dwellings on the approximate 
number of 200 was, in principle, reasonable, and did not result in a significantly different 
development to that outlined in the Local Plan.  The final number of dwellings would be 
determined at application stage and there was no cap on the number. Sustainability was a 
major presumption. Only access into the site was to be considered at this stage. 
Appearance, layout, scale and landscaping were all reserved for future consideration. 

The planning officer advised that access was proposed via a new junction onto Coxwell 
Road in the south east corner of the site, with a right-hand turn lane into the site from 
Coxwell Road. The access plan, accompanied by other application drawings, was 
attached at Appendix 2 of the report, and a plan was displayed to the Committee at the 
meeting. Pedestrian access points to connect to the adjacent development on the northern 
part of the allocation would be provided at Reserved Matters stage.

The planning officer provided detailed information to the committee concerning building 
heights, following a question. The committee was informed that a Building Heights 
parameter plan had been submitted that indicated that buildings with higher ridge heights 
of up to 9.5 metres (typically 2.5 storey properties) would be located in the north east 
corner of the site close to Coxwell Road, and adjacent residential development. 
Development around the periphery of the site to the west and south would be limited to up 
to 8.5 metres ridge height (typically 2 storey properties) where the site met the rural edge 
and rose slightly in the west. Policy NDS9 of the Great Coxwell Neighbourhood Plan 
required that new development should be no higher than two storeys, with roof space 
behind dormers. Officers considered this to be 2.5 storey accommodation, and whilst it 
was likely that the rooflines of the development would be seen in some glimpsed long 
distance views from higher land to the south west, the development would be seen in the 
context of the existing urban edge of Faringdon, which was acceptable.

The committee was shown slides of views to and from the site, notably its relationship to 
the Grade 1 listed Great Barn; the submitted heritage statement confirmed that views of 
the development to and from the barn would be limited. 

The planning officer reported that the National Policy Planning Framework advised that 
planning obligations should only be sought where they met all of the following tests in 
paragraph 56: namely, ‘necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
directly related to the development; and fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to 
the development’. 

In addition, Core Policy 7 of LPP1 provided that development would only be permitted 
where the necessary physical infrastructure and service requirements to support the 
development could be secured. If infrastructure requirements could render the 
development unviable, proposals for major development should be supported by a viability 
assessment. 

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 19 August 2020 Pl.4

The planning officer reported that the developer had submitted a viability assessment 
which identified that the proposed development would not be viable if all of the proposed 
infrastructure costs were sought with a scheme that was policy compliant in terms of 
affordable housing. In reviewing the assessment, officers had sought to ensure that 
developer contributions towards essential infrastructure were prioritised alongside 
affordable housing to make the development acceptable, in line with Core Policy 7 
requirements of LLP1.

The planning officer reported that the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) was adopted in 
September 2017 and implemented in November 2017. The monies accrued would fund 
infrastructure and support growth. In general, off-site mitigation would be sought via CIL 
and on-site elements and direct mitigation would be sought via a S.106 agreement. This 
site however was within Zone 3 and was exempt from CIL charges. Off-site mitigation 
would therefore be sought via a S.106 agreement.

Councillor Dr. Mike Wise, a representative of Faringdon Town Council and of Great 
Coxwell Parish Council, spoke objecting to the application. A statement he had submitted 
jointly on behalf of both councils had been circulated to the Committee in advance of the 
meeting. 

Nathan McLoughlin, the agent, spoke in support of the application. A statement he had 
submitted had been circulated to the Committee in advance of the meeting.

Councillor David Grant, a local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the application. A 
statement he had submitted jointly with Councillor Bethia Thomas, the other Faringdon 
ward councillor, had been circulated to the Committee in advance of the meeting.

The committee expressed concerns at the seemingly inadequate infrastructure provision, 
particularly leisure facilities and healthcare provision. It also considered that the affordable 
housing provision proportion could be increased and that the development appeared to be 
presented in split phases to avoid optimum affordable housing numbers. The planning 
officer confirmed that this was not a split site development (which commonly occurred with 
much smaller sites). 

The planning officer reported that following review, amendments to the viability 
assessment had been made to ensure essential infrastructure to support the development 
was prioritised, as required by Core Policy 7 of LPP1. Officers considered on this basis, 
and in consultation with housing development officers, that the scheme could only viably 
provide 24.8% affordable housing provision with a tenure split of 52% affordable rented 
and 48% shared ownership.

The planning officer referred the committee to the table at paragraph 5.5 of the report, 
which listed the contributions which had been requested from the developers. A total of 
£683,606 had been accrued. In reviewing the viability assessment which had been 
submitted, officers had sought to ensure that developer contributions towards essential 
infrastructure were prioritised alongside affordable housing, to make the development 
acceptable; a table at paragraph 5.57 itemised the contributions necessary in the light of 
the viability assessment, which were considered essential by officers, and which were 
considered fair and proportionate. These had been agreed with the applicant. 

The committee remained concerned that the affordable housing element of the proposal, 
as a material consideration, was not adequate and that infrastructure provision (by reason 

Page 7



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 19 August 2020 Pl.5

of lower than expected S.106 funds) did not meet the needs of such a substantial 
development. For these reasons they were unable to support the proposal.

A motion, moved and seconded, to refuse outline planning permission was declared 
carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED; to refuse outline planning permission for application P18/V0259/O for the 
following reasons;

1. Inadequate affordable housing.
2. Insufficient projected S.106 funds for infrastructure provision.

The meeting closed at 6.30 pm

Page 8



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report - 17 August 2020

APPLICATION NO. P20/V0707/FUL
SITE 3 Wildmoor Gate Abingdon, OX14 1JP
PARISH ABINGDON
PROPOSAL Demolition of an existing extension and 

the erection of a two-storey side 
extension to form two 1-bedroom 
apartments with parking and amenity 
space (Addition of visitor parking space 
and cycle storage as shown on p104B 
and p100C)

WARD MEMBER(S) Eric de la Harpe
Robert Maddison

APPLICANT Mr Gareth Bertram
OFFICER Lewis Dixey

RECOMMENDATION
Planning Permission subject to the following conditions:

Standard:
1. TL1 - Time limit - Full Application
2. Approved plans
3. MC3 - Materials in Accordance with Application

Prior to Commencement:
4. MC25 - Drainage Details (Surface Water)
5. MC26 - Drainage Details (Foul Water)

Prior to Occupation:
6. HY6 – Access and Parking in Accordance with Approved Plans

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application is referred to planning committee following a call-in by the ward 

councillor Eric de la Harpe. Abingdon Town Council, a number of neighbouring 
residents and Abingdon Civic Society also object to the proposal.

1.2 The site is a semi-detached, three-bedroom house located within a residential area of 
Abingdon. Its walls are rendered with a tiled roof and set within a sizable plot which 
extends to northern side, the site of the proposed enlargement.

1.3 The adjoining property, no.1 Wildmoor Gate, is found to the south with further 
neighbours fronting Berry Croft located to the rear. Neighbouring dwellings to the 
north on Wildmoor Gate are separated by a footpath and drainage ditch. 

1.4 The application seeks planning permission to demolish the existing single-storey side 
extension and to erect a two-storey side and two-storey rear extension. The extension 
will be used for two, one-bedroom flats. All external materials to be used would match 
the existing dwelling. The rear extension has been designed to comply with the 40-

Page 9

Agenda Item 7

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/V0707/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report - 17 August 2020

degree rule. Officers are aware that the existing single storey side extension has 
been demolished but no further work has been undertaken on site.

1.5 Three parking spaces would be provided for the proposed flats. One space for each 
flat in line with adopted standards and a visitor’s space, which was added via 
amended plans received on 5 May 2020. A new access onto Wildmoor Gate serving 
the three parking spaces would be provided on the northern side. The existing 
property does not have any off-street parking provision and therefore no change will 
be made to the current arrangement.
 

1.6 Storage for cycles are also proposed. The application has been amended to address 
concerns about access to these stores.

1.7 A site location plan is provided below, and the plans are attached at Appendix 1.

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 All representations made on the application are available in full on the council’s 

website, www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Abingdon Town Council Objects
On the grounds of in-sufficient parking 
and highway safety

Local Ward Member – Eric de la 
Harpe

Objects
On the grounds of in-sufficient parking 

Page 10

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report - 17 August 2020

and highway safety

Drainage - (South&Vale) No objection
Subject to conditions

Vale - Highways Liaison Officer 
(Oxfordshire County Council)

No objection
Subject to condition

Waste Management Officer 
(District Council)

No objection 

Neighbours Objections from four local 
households and from the Friends 
of Abingdon Civic Society for the 
following reasons: 

 The proposal has inadequate 
parking and will worsen existing 
on-street congestion and 
highway safety

 Proposed cycle storage / bins 
lead to a cluttered appearance

 Overlooking

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 None

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
4.1 The development does not fall within the defined scope for potential EIA development.

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
5.1 The main relevant planning considerations are the following:

 Principle of development
 Character and appearance
 Residential amenity
 Access and parking
 Drainage

5.2 Principle
The site is within Abingdon which is classified as a Market Town within the Local Plan 
2031 Part 1. Market Towns have the greatest long-term potential for development to 
provide the jobs and homes to help sustain, and where appropriate, enhance their 
services and facilities to support viable and sustainable communities in a proportionate 
manner. The redevelopment of the site to provide flats is therefore acceptable in 
principle, subject to the details of the development. These will be considered below.

5.3 Character and appearance
The proposed enlargement to accommodate the new flats extends 4.7m northwards 
before being stepped back with a lowered ridge to appear as an extension. Matching 

Page 11



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report - 17 August 2020

external materials will be used and this will help to integrate the proposal successfully 
into the area. The majority of the properties in the vicinity are either semi-detached or 
terraced, with examples of conversion to flats and of a similar style to that proposed. 
Officers are satisfied that the works would be in-keeping with the character and 
appearance of the locality and would not adversely affect the street scene.

5.4 The existing plot is substantially wider than the prevailing character of the surrounding 
area and, therefore, officers consider the sub-division of this plot would not appear out 
of place or result in a visually cramped form of development. Adequate amenity space 
to meet design guide standards would be retained for both the existing and proposed 
dwellings.  The proposed parking spaces on the frontage is reflective of surrounding 
parking arrangements.

5.5 A letter of objection raises concern over the cluttered appearance of the cycle storage. 
The storage units will be sited to either side of the parking spaces. They will be 
relatively small and muted in colour. The council’s design guide recommends that 
secure and convenient cycle storage for flats should be provided and preferably close 
to main entrances. The provision of secure storage is essential for cycling to become 
an attractive alternative to the car. In the opinion of officers, in this case, the benefits 
of providing this facility outweighs the relatively limited visual harm.

5.6 In view of the above, the design and appearance of the proposed development is in 
compliance with the advice contained within the NPPF, the Design Guide SPD and 
CP37 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1.

5.7 Residential amenity
The rear projecting gable is not considered to be overly dominant and its relationship 
to the adjoining dwelling meets the 40-degree rule. One letter of objection raises 
concern regarding overlooking. The new first floor windows will lie 9 – 10 metres from 
the west boundary with the rear garden of no.54 Berry Croft. This distance is 
considered to be sufficient to protect the privacy of neighbours.

5.8 The closest neighbouring property to the north, The Glade, is separated from the site 
by a gap of 12m across a footpath and drainage ditch. In view of this, the proposal is 
not considered to cause harm to these neighbours in terms of overshadowing or 
dominance.

5.9 Access and parking
The main objections to the application from local members, neighbouring residents, 
and the town council relate to the proposed parking provision, and the impact on 
highway safety.

5.10 The existing house has no off-street parking. This is the historic situation. Therefore, it 
is not reasonable in planning terms to require off-street parking for the house as part 
of the proposal. The proposal will provide three off-street parking spaces for the 
proposed flats, including a visitor’s space added through amended plans at the 
request of the county highways officer. The revised car parking arrangement, cycle 
parking provision, and pedestrian awareness vision splays are all considered 
acceptable by the county highways officer.

5.11 Local objections raise concern over the potential of the proposal to add to parking 
congestion within the area, and of being a risk to pedestrian safety. Members will be 
aware that the NPPF sets an impact threshold of “severe” for the effect of a new 

Page 12



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report - 17 August 2020

development on a local highway network in order to refuse a proposal. Officers have 
conducted a number of site visits to assess local conditions. The highways officer has 
made a careful assessment of the application and is satisfied that the proposed three 
spaces and pedestrian vision splays are satisfactory. No “severe” harm to the local 
network can be substantiated. Taking into account the professional opinion of the 
county highways officer, and without clear evidence to suggest otherwise, officers 
consider it would not be reasonable to refuse the application on these grounds.

5.12 Drainage 
The council’s drainage engineer has raised no objections to the proposal. Conditions 
are recommended to request full surface and foul drainage details.

6.0 CONCLUSION AND PLANNING BALANCE
Paragraph 8 of the NPPF confirms that, to achieve sustainable development, the 
planning system has three interdependent objectives, economic, social and 
environmental. The proposal has economic benefits in the employment that will be 
provided for those involved in the construction, and in terms of additional support 
residents will provide for local businesses. It has social benefits in terms of providing 
additional support for local services and facilities. It also has environmental benefits in 
terms of allowing a net additional two households to live in a location with realistic 
access to good quality, alternative modes of transport, in terms of making more 
effective use of land, and in terms of an acceptable design that does not cause harm to 
the area or to neighbours’ amenities. Officers consider these benefits all attract 
significant weight. The main local objection relates to highway safety and parking 
congestion. The assessment by the county highways officer and observations during 
officers site visits suggests that the proposal will neither cause harm to highway safety, 
nor lead to a severe cumulative impact on the road network. These are the tests 
specified in paragraph 109 of the NPPF.

6.1 In the absence of any negative weight that can be attached to the proposal, in the form 
of identified harm from any material consideration, officers consider the outcome of the 
planning balance is that the proposal complies with the provisions of the development 
plan, in particular policy CP37, DP16 and DP23 of the adopted Vale of White Horse 
Plan 2031.The proposal is also considered to comply with the provisions of the National 
Planning Policy Framework and the council’s adopted Design Guide SPD 2015

The following planning policies have been taken into account:

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies;
CP01  -  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

CP03  -  Settlement Hierarchy

CP04  -  Meeting Our Housing Needs

CP08  -  Spatial Strategy for Abingdon-on-Thames and Oxford Fringe Sub-Area

CP33  -  Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility

CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness

CP42  -  Flood Risk

Page 13



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report - 17 August 2020

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031, Part 2 policies; 
DP02  -  Space Standards

DP16  -  Access

DP23  -  Impact of Development on Amenity

DP28  -  Waste Collection and Recycling

National Planning Policy Framework 2019 

National Planning Practice Guidance 2014 – 2019

Equalities Act 2010 
The proposal has been assessed against section 149 of the Equalities Act. It is 
considered that no identified group will suffer discrimination as a result of this proposal

Human Rights Act, 1998 
The application has been assessed against Schedule 1, Part 1, Article 8, and against 
Schedule 1, Part 2, Article 1 of the Human Rights Act, 1998. The harm to individuals 
has been balanced against the public interest and the officer recommendation is 
considered to be proportionate.

Vale of White Horse Design Guide 2015

Author: Lewis Dixey 
Email: lewis.dixey@southandvale.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01235 422600

Page 14

mailto:lewis.dixey@southandvale.gov.uk


BERRY CROFT

the site:
3 wildmoor gate

the site:
3 wildmoor gate

0 8

1:200 @ a3

2 4 6 10m

scale:

date:

job:

Notes

Ifor Rhys Ltd

No deviation may be made from the 
details shown on this drawing 
without prior permission of the 
architects. Any discrepancy found 
between this drawing and any other 
document should be referred 
immediately to the architects.
IF IN DOUBT ASK.
No dimensions should be scaled 
from this drawing.
This drawing is to be removed from 
currency immediately a revised 
version is issued.
The contractor must check the 
existing construction on the site 
prior to commencement of the 
works.
All rights described in chapter 1V of 
the Copyright, Designs and Patents 
Act of 1988 have been generally 
asserted.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

no:

title:

client:

architects
environmental designers
landscape & interior designers

t   01865 874112
e  iforrhys@iforrhys.com

lower barn, 4 blenheim road,
horspath, oxford, ox33 1ry

status

As indicated

2
6
/0

5
/2

0
2
0
 1

4
:5

3
:4

3

Location & proposed block
plan

Proposed development at 3
Wildmoor Gate, Abingdon

Mr G Bertram

dec 2019

p100C1934

planning issue

North

1 : 1250p100C

00.0 Location Plan as existing1

0

1:1250 @ a3

100m

1 : 200p100C

00.1 Block Plan as proposed2

Rev Date Description

A 03mar red line adjusted

B 05may Additional parking
space/bike racks added

C 26may secure bike storage added

Appendix 1

P
age 15



materials - existing:

roof: concrete tiles - brown

walls 1: panited render

walls 2: facing brick - red

windows:  stained timber frames and sills

doors: stained timber frames and sills

1

2

3 wildmoor gate1 wildmoor gate

section through 

neighbour house - 1 

Wildmoor Gate

materials - existing:

roof: concrete tiles - brown

walls 1: panited render

walls 2: facing brick - red

windows:  stained timber frames and sills

doors: stained timber frames and sills

1

2

3 wildmoor gate 1 wildmoor gate

scale:

date:

job:

Notes

Ifor Rhys Ltd

No deviation may be made from the 
details shown on this drawing 
without prior permission of the 
architects. Any discrepancy found 
between this drawing and any other 
document should be referred 
immediately to the architects.
IF IN DOUBT ASK.
No dimensions should be scaled 
from this drawing.
This drawing is to be removed from 
currency immediately a revised 
version is issued.
The contractor must check the 
existing construction on the site 
prior to commencement of the 
works.
All rights described in chapter 1V of 
the Copyright, Designs and Patents 
Act of 1988 have been generally 
asserted.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

no:

title:

client:

architects
environmental designers
landscape & interior designers

t   01865 874112
e  iforrhys@iforrhys.com

lower barn, 4 blenheim road,
horspath, oxford, ox33 1ry

status

1 : 100

2
3
/1

2
/2

0
1
9
 1

3
:0

0
:0

5

Elevations - as existing

Proposed development at 3
Wildmoor Gate, Abingdon

Mr G Bertram

dec 2019

p1031934

planning issue

1 : 100p103

05.0 east elevation - existing1

1 : 100p103

06.0 north elevation - existing2

1 : 100p103

07.0 south elevation - existing3

1 : 100p103

08.0 west elevation - existing4

Rev Date Description

0 4

1:100 @ a3

1 2 3 5m

P
age 16



materials - proposed:

roof: concrete tiles - brown

walls 1: smooth render with masonry paint finish

windows:  stained timber frames and sills

doors: stained timber frames and sills

3a/b wildmoor gate 3 wildmoor gate 1 wildmoor gate

materials - proposed:

roof: concrete tiles - brown

walls 1: smooth render with masonry paint finish

windows:  stained timber frames and sills

doors: stained timber frames and sills

1 wildmoor gate 3 widlmoor gate 3a/b wildmoor gate

section through 

neighbour house - 1 

Wildmoor Gate

scale:

date:

job:

Notes

Ifor Rhys Ltd

No deviation may be made from the 
details shown on this drawing 
without prior permission of the 
architects. Any discrepancy found 
between this drawing and any other 
document should be referred 
immediately to the architects.
IF IN DOUBT ASK.
No dimensions should be scaled 
from this drawing.
This drawing is to be removed from 
currency immediately a revised 
version is issued.
The contractor must check the 
existing construction on the site 
prior to commencement of the 
works.
All rights described in chapter 1V of 
the Copyright, Designs and Patents 
Act of 1988 have been generally 
asserted.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

no:

title:

client:

architects
environmental designers
landscape & interior designers

t   01865 874112
e  iforrhys@iforrhys.com

lower barn, 4 blenheim road,
horspath, oxford, ox33 1ry

status

1 : 100

2
3
/1

2
/2

0
1
9
 1

3
:0

3
:5

3

Elevations - as proposed

Proposed development at 3
Wildmoor Gate, Abingdon

Mr G Bertram

dec 2019

p1061934

planning issue

Rev Date Description

0 4

1:100 @ a3

1 2 3 5m

1 : 100p106

08.2 west elevation - proposed5

1 : 100p106

05.2 east elevation - proposed4

1 : 100p106

07.2 south elevation - proposed6

1 : 100p106

06.2 north elevation - proposed7

P
age 17



bed shwr

hw

kitchendiningliving

GF FLAT

Area:56.7sqm 

3 wildmoor gate

3a/b wildmoor gate

parking space 2:parking space 2:parking space 2:parking space 2:

parking space for 

proposed first floor flat 

(2.5mx5m)

parking space 1:parking space 1:parking space 1:parking space 1:

existing parking space for 

proposed ground floor 

flat (2.5mx5m)

v
e

h
ic

le
 '
sh

y
n

e
ss

' 
zo

n
e

 0
.5

m
 d

e
e

p

visiblity splay: visiblity splay: visiblity splay: visiblity splay: 

2mx2m pedestrian 

visiblity splay no 

boundary treatment or 

planting above 600mm

visiblity splay: visiblity splay: visiblity splay: visiblity splay: 

2mx2m pedestrian 

visiblity splay no 

boundary treatment or 

planting above 600mm

parking space 3:parking space 3:parking space 3:parking space 3:

visitor parking space 

(2.5mx5m)

secure 

bike

storage:

2no. bicycles

secure 

bike

storage:

2no. bicycles

scale:

date:

job:

Notes

Ifor Rhys Ltd

No deviation may be made from the 
details shown on this drawing 
without prior permission of the 
architects. Any discrepancy found 
between this drawing and any other 
document should be referred 
immediately to the architects.
IF IN DOUBT ASK.
No dimensions should be scaled 
from this drawing.
This drawing is to be removed from 
currency immediately a revised 
version is issued.
The contractor must check the 
existing construction on the site 
prior to commencement of the 
works.
All rights described in chapter 1V of 
the Copyright, Designs and Patents 
Act of 1988 have been generally 
asserted.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

no:

title:

client:

architects
environmental designers
landscape & interior designers

t   01865 874112
e  iforrhys@iforrhys.com

lower barn, 4 blenheim road,
horspath, oxford, ox33 1ry

status

1 : 100

2
6
/0

5
/2

0
2
0
 1

4
:5

6
:5

0

Ground Floor Plan - as
proposed

Proposed development at 3
Wildmoor Gate, Abingdon

Mr G Bertram

dec 2019

p104B1934

planning issue

North

0 4

1:100 @ a3

1 2 3 5m

1 : 100p104B

01.2 Ground floor as proposed2

Rev Date Description

A 05may Additional parking
space/bike racks added

B 26may secure bike storage added

P
age 18



hw shwr

kitchendiningliving

bed

FF FLAT:

Area: 58.6sqm

scale:

date:

job:

Notes

Ifor Rhys Ltd

No deviation may be made from the 
details shown on this drawing 
without prior permission of the 
architects. Any discrepancy found 
between this drawing and any other 
document should be referred 
immediately to the architects.
IF IN DOUBT ASK.
No dimensions should be scaled 
from this drawing.
This drawing is to be removed from 
currency immediately a revised 
version is issued.
The contractor must check the 
existing construction on the site 
prior to commencement of the 
works.
All rights described in chapter 1V of 
the Copyright, Designs and Patents 
Act of 1988 have been generally 
asserted.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

no:

title:

client:

architects
environmental designers
landscape & interior designers

t   01865 874112
e  iforrhys@iforrhys.com

lower barn, 4 blenheim road,
horspath, oxford, ox33 1ry

status

1 : 100

2
3
/1

2
/2

0
1
9
 1

3
:0

9
:5

2

First Floor and Roof plans -
as proposed

Proposed development at 3
Wildmoor Gate, Abingdon

Mr G Bertram

dec 2019

p1051934

planning issue

Rev Date Description

North

0 4

1:100 @ a3

1 2 3 5m

1 : 100p105

02.2 First Floor as proposed3

1 : 100p105

04.2 Roof Plan as proposed2

P
age 19



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 September 2020

APPLICATION NO. P20/V1284/HH
SITE 2 Old Bakery Cottages Bakery Lane 

Letcombe Regis Wantage, OX12 9JN
PARISH LETCOMBE REGIS
PROPOSAL Existing garage to be demolished, 

replaced with single storey side 
extension.

WARD MEMBER(S) Paul Barrow
APPLICANT Mr Dominic Lamb
OFFICER Helena Ahier

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to the 
following conditions:

Standard Conditions:

1. Commencement within 3 years
2. Development completed in accordance with approved plans

Compliance Condition

3. Materials in accordance with application details

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application is referred to committee as the applicant is a member of staff 

within the planning service of the council. 

1.2 The application site, 2 Old Bakery Cottages, is a semi-detached property set in 
a modest plot towards the centre of Letcombe Regis. The application site is 
located within Letcombe Bassett and Regis Conservation Area and the North 
Wessex Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). Vehicular access 
to the site is taken from a shared drive which forks off in a northerly direction 
from Bakery Lane.

1.3 A site location plan is included overleaf.

Page 20

Agenda Item 8

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/V1284/HH


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 September 2020

1.4

1.5 This application seeks planning permission to demolish the existing detached 
garage to the side (south) of the dwelling and erect a new single storey side 
and rear extension adjoining the existing dwelling. Extracts from the 
application plans are attached at Appendix 1. 

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 A summary of comments is provided below. The comments are provided in full

at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk. 

2.2
Consultee Comment
Letcombe Regis Parish 
Council

No objections. 
“Letcombe Regis Parish Councillors 
have no objection to this planning 
application. One Councillor felt that 
brick would look better than cladding 
on the exterior wall of the extension. 
Councillors have consulted with 
neighbours and have received no 
objections.”

Archaeologist (Oxfordshire 
County Council)

No archaeological constraints.

SGN Plant Protection Team Details provided regarding provision 
of gas pipelines for information only. 

Neighbour representations None received. 

Page 21

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 September 2020

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 P17/V0856/HH - Approved (13/06/2017)

Construction of a single storey side extension, replacement of porch and 
demolition of existing detached garage. Erection of a garden shed.

P84/V1040 - Approved (05/10/1984)
Erection of a garage, 2 Old Bakery Cottages, Letcombe Regis

P84/V5123 - Refused (13/09/1984)
Erection of a garage. For: J Blair

P74/V0655 - Approved (29/11/1974)
Extension and alterations to provide bathroom, kitchen, bedroom and garage. 2 
Old Bakery Cottages, Letcombe Regis

3.2 Pre-application History
None

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
4.1 The proposal is not a type of development that qualifies as EIA development

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
5.1 The main issues in the determination of this application are:

 Design, character and heritage; 
 Residential amenity; and
 Parking and highway safety 

5.2 Design, character and heritage 
The proposed side and rear extension would be single storey in height and 
would be of a subordinate scale in relation to the main dwelling, respecting its 
existing form and proportions.  It would be constructed of a low-level brick wall 
and timber cladding in a natural finish above, with the shallow dual pitched roof 
of slate tiles to match the existing dwelling; respecting its existing rural 
character and appearance.  Officers acknowledge the comments from the 
parish council regarding materials and have considered this. The application 
must be assessed on the basis of the details submitted and timber cladding is a 
traditional material which would not appear out of place within the context of 
the area. As such the use of timber cladding is considered to be acceptable 
and would not harm the visual amenity of the surrounding area. 

5.3 While the proposed extension would be visible from the frontage of the site, the 
dwelling is located at the end of a private track and therefore there are limited 
public views to the site.  Furthermore, the proposed extension would be 

Page 22

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/V0856/HH
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P84/V1040
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P84/V5123
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P74/V0655


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 September 2020

constructed on a similar footprint and be of similar dimensions to that of the 
existing garage which is to be demolished.  It is not considered that the 
proposed extension would appear overly prominent or out of place within the 
street scene. 

5.4 There is no objection to the demolition of the existing garage which is of little
architectural merit. The existing garage was built on top of the brick boundary 
wall to the south.  This boundary wall to the south will remain in situ, with the 
rest of the garage to be demolished. 

5.5 The site visit photographs show the ground level to the north and east of the 
existing garage approximately 1m higher than the ground level surrounding the 
dwelling and to the west of the garage.  The ground would be levelled to that of 
the existing in order to accommodate the proposed extension as shown on the 
elevation plans.

5.6 The application site is located within the Letcombe Bassett and Letcombe 
Regis Conservation Area and within the North Wessex Downs Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). Overall, Officers consider that the 
proposed extension would complement the existing dwelling in terms of scale, 
design and materials. It would not appear prominent or out of place within the 
street scene. Officers consider that the proposed extension would preserve the 
character and appearance of the conservation area and given its scale and 
location within the existing built up area of the village, would not harm 
landscape beauty of the AONB. 

5.7 As such the proposal is considered to meet the requirements of policies CP37, 
CP39 and CP44 of the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1, policy DP37 of the 
adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 2 and the Design Guide 2015 SPD. 

5.8 Residential amenity
Although the proposed extension would project towards the southern boundary, 
it would be set in from the boundary itself and would be within a similar footprint 
to the existing garage that is to be demolished.  It would be relatively low in 
height at approximately 4.3 metres; with an eaves height of approximately 2.4 
metres, similar to the existing garage. The rooflights would be within the west 
roof slope to the front of the site; doors and windows would be inserted within 
the east elevation into the rear garden of the site; none would overlook any 
adjoining neighbours’ private amenity space.  Officers consider the proposal 
would not cause harm to neighbours through either loss of light, dominance or 
overlooking, consistent with policy DP23 of the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 
2.

5.9 Parking and highway safety
The existing garage would be demolished as part of the proposal, resulting in 
the loss of 1 parking space.  Notwithstanding this, the site visit photographs 
and plans show that parking for at least 2 vehicles on site would remain and 
Officers consider this would be sufficient parking for this 3 bedroom dwelling.  
Furthermore, the proposal does not increase the number of bedrooms within 
the property nor alter the existing access.  Therefore, Officers consider that 

Page 23



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 September 2020

sufficient parking provision would remain for the dwelling as a result of the 
proposal and there would be no harm to highway safety. As such, the proposal 
is considered to meet the requirements of policies CP37 and CP37 of the 
adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1 and policy DP16 of the adopted Local Plan 
2031 Part 2. 

5.10 Other matters 
5.11 Archaeology

The site is located in an area of archaeological interest and therefore the 
Archaeologist at the County Council has been consulted on the application. He 
has assessed the proposal and as commented that as the development is of a 
relatively small scale, that there are no archaeological constraints to this 
scheme.

5.12 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
The Council has adopted the Community Infrastructure Levy Charging 
Schedule which took effect on 1 November 2017.  Given the size of the 
proposed extension is less than 100 square metres, this proposal is not CIL 
liable.

6.0 CONCLUSION
6.1 The proposed single storey extension would not harm the character and 

appearance of the area, the wider landscape, the amenity of neighbouring 
properties nor highway safety. It would preserve the character and appearance 
of the conservation area. The proposal is therefore considered to comply with 
the Development Plan, in particular policies CP35, CP37, CP39 and CP44 of 
the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1 and policies DP16, DP23 and DP37 of the 
adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 2, the Design Guide SPD 2015 and the provisions 
of the National Planning Policy Framework.

The following planning policies have been taken into account:

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies

CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP39  -  The Historic Environment
CP44  -  Landscape

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 policies

DP16  -  Access
DP23  -  Impact of Development on Amenity
DP37  -  Conservation Areas
DP39  -  Archaeology and Scheduled Monuments

Vale of White Horse Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (March 
2015)

Page 24



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 September 2020

The National Planning Policy Framework (2019) (NPPF)

National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG)

Other relevant legislation and guidance:

The Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000

Human Rights Act 1998
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report.

Equality Act 2010
In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.

Author:  Helena Ahier
Email:  helena.ahier@southandvale.gov.uk
Telephone:  01235 422600

Page 25

mailto:helena.ahier@southandvale.gov.uk


Page 26

SAV_HollyB
Typewriter
P20/V1284/HH - Appendix One - 1/5



Page 27

SAV_HollyB_1
Typewriter
P20/V1284/HH - Appendix One - 2/5



Page 28

SAV_HollyB_2
Typewriter
P20/V1284/HH - Appendix One - 3/5



Page 29

SAV_HollyB_3
Typewriter
P20/V1284/HH - Appendix One - 4/5



Page 30

SAV_HollyB_4
Typewriter
P20/V1284/HH - Appendix One - 5/5


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 3 Wildmoor Gate, Abingdon
	Appendices
	Appendix 1 Block & Location Plan
	Sheets
	p100C - Location & proposed block plan


	Appendix 1 Elevations Existing
	Sheets
	p103 - Elevations - as existing


	Appendix 1 Elevations Proposed
	Sheets
	p106 - Elevations - as proposed


	Appendix 1 Floor Ground Plan Proposed
	Sheets
	p104B - Ground Floor Plan - as proposed


	Appendix 1 Roof & Floor First Plan Proposed
	Sheets
	p105 - First Floor and Roof plans - as proposed




	8 2 Old Bakery Cottages, Bakery Lane, Letcombe Regis
	Appendices
	Appendix One 1of5
	Appendix One 2of5
	Appendix One 3of5
	Appendix One 4of5
	Appendix One 5of5



